








Revised 1/9/2023 
 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

Organizational Meeting 
 

January 10, 2023 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

 
 

1. Call to Order/Pledge 

2. Oath of Office 

3. Election of President, Vice President and Secretary 

4. Conflicts of Interest 

5. Resolution of the Board of School Trustees 

6. Adjournment 

 
 



















ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

Board of Finance Annual Meeting 
 

January 10, 2023 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order/Pledge 

2. Adoption of Resolution 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Finance does hereby authorize the 
Treasurer of the Elkhart community Schools to invest funds from the 
depository balance instead of from a specific fund balance in accordance  
with the provisions established by Indiana Code 5-13-9-6. 
 

3. Review 2022 Investment History and Investment Policy as stipulated  
in I.C. 5-13-7-7. 
 

4. Financial Indicators 

5. Adjournment 

 
 



Investment Maturity Interest

Date Date Rate Institution Principal Interest

*No investment activity during 2022

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

2022

INVESTMENT HISTORY















- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

January 10, 2023 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Jan 10 6:30 p.m. Organizational Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 10 
Immediately 

Following Finance Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 10 
Immediately 

Following Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 17 6:00 p.m. Special Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 24 6:00 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 24 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

 
B. THE ELKHART PROMISE  

 

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 
 

D. MOMENT OF PRIDE  

 
E. CONSENT ITEMS: 

 
Minutes – December 19, 2022 – Regular Board Meeting 
Claims 

Fundraisers 
Gift Acceptance 
Conference Leaves 

Personnel Report 
 

F. INSTRUCTIONAL REPORT 

 
G. OLD BUSINESS 

 

H. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Contract Non-Renewal – The administration recommends Board adoption of a 

Resolution authorizing the Superintendent to issue written preliminary notice of 
contract non-renewal. 
 

 2023-2024 School Calendar – The administration presents the proposed 2023-2024 
School Calendar for initial consideration. 
 



BOARD AGENDA January 10, 2023 
 
 

2 
 

  

I. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 

 
 From Board 

 

J. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

December 19, 2022 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart 
– at  8:02 a.m. 

Place/Time 

 

Board Members Dacey S. Davis Babette S. Boling 

Present: Troy E. Scott Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. 

 Douglas K. Weaver Kellie L. Mullins 

  Anne M. VonDerVellen 

   
 

Roll Call 

Board president Dacey Davis called the regular meeting of the Board 

of School Trustees to order. 
 

Call to 

Order 
 

Board member Rocky Enfield recited the Elkhart Promise. 

 
 

The Elkhart 

Promise 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following consent items: Consent Items 

 
Minutes – December 13, 2022 – Public Work Session 
Minutes – December 13, 2022 – Regular Board Meeting 

 

 
Minutes 

Payment of claims totaling $5,913,480.24 as shown on the 

December 19, 2022 claims listing.  (Codified File 2223-82) 
 

Payment of 

Claims 

Proposed school fundraisers in accordance with Board policy.  
(Codified File 2223-83) 

 

Fundraisers 

Extra-curricular purchase requests:  West Side Athletics 

Account to purchase thirty (30) helmets totaling $5,670.00 and 
West Side Extra-Curricular Account to purchase three (3) 
trombones and six (6) trumpets totaling $9,149.55. 

 

Extra- Curricular 

Purchases 

The following donations were made to Elkhart Community 

Schools (ECS):  Oil, lubricants, and other miscellaneous 
automotive supplies with an owner estimated value of $78,000 

from Kem Krest to the Elkhart Area Career Center (EACC) to be 
used in the Automotive and Diesel Technology classes; $1,000 
from Legacy Heating and Air, Inc. to Elkhart High School (EHS) 

Cheerleading team to assist with the growth of the program; 

Gift Acceptance 



2 
 

and $1,000 from Monteith’s Best-One Tire and Service to EHS 

Cheerleading team to assist with the growth of the program. 
 

Conference leave requests in accordance with Board policy for 
staff members as recommended by the administration on the 
December 19, 2022 listings.  (Codified File 2223-84) 

 

Conference 
Leave Requests 
 

Submission of the following grants:  Community Foundation of 

Elkhart County Mishler Brown Grant hosted by Carrie Berghoff 
of Community Foundation of Elkhart County for the Agriculture 

department in the amount of $50,000 and NRA Foundation 
hosted by Friends of the NRA for the Elkhart High School (EHS) 
Air Force Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps (AFJROTC) in the 

amount of $12,000. (Codified File 2223-85) 
 

Grants 

 
 

Employment of the following three (3) certified staff members, 
effective on dates indicated: 

Laurie Kaiser – grade 6 at Osolo, 1/9/23 

Monica Shankle – special education at Beardsley, 
1/10/23 

William Simmons – math at West Side, 1/9/23 
 
Resignation of the following three (3) certified staff members 

on dates indicated:   
Aaron Elias – social studies at Pierre Moran, 12/22/22 

Russell Horst – science at Elkhart High, 12/22/22 
Kathryn Lane – language arts at Elkhart High, 12/22/22 
 

Employment of the following one (1) classified employee on 
date indicated: 

Suzanne Tufts – secretary at ESC, 12/19/22 
 

Retirement of the following one (1) classified employee on date 

indicated: 
Loria Mayes – executive assistant, 3/3/23 with 42 Years 

of Service 
 

Unpaid leave extension for the following one (1) classified 

employee on dates indicated:   
Lisa Swartzell-Guerra – food service at Riverview, 

beginning 11/3/22 and ending 12/15/22 
 

Resignation of the following one (1) classified employee on date 
indicated: 

Kevin Havens – custodian at West Side, 3/31/23 

 

Personnel Report 
 

Certified 
Employment 
 

 
 

 
 
Certified 

Resignations 
 

 
 
 

Classified 
Employment 

 
 
Classified 

Retirement 
 

 
 
Classified Unpaid 

Leave 
 

 
 

Classified 
Resignation 



3 
 

Superintendent Steve Thalheimer informed the Board this was the 

second week of the surveys and encouraged community members to 
go to ECS’s website to take the surveys.  All students in grades 7 
through 12 will be taking the student surveys this week during their 

advisory period. 
 

Demographic and 

Feasibility Study 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the purchase of 10 new 
passenger buses through the State Cooperative Purchasing program.  The 
recommended purchase includes three special needs, 72 passenger buses 

with three wheelchair hook ups, 1,000 pound Braun lift and air-
conditioning; three 78 passenger front engine conventional buses; and 
four 84 passenger rear engine transit buses for a total of $1,589,653.00.    

Twenty buses will be traded outright reducing our fleet by ten buses.  
(Codified File 2223-86) 
 

Bus Purchase 

By unanimous action, the Board awarded the bid for Fuel for 2023 to 
Ceres Solutions, as the most responsive and most responsible bidder. 

Later in the meeting, Jon Chevalier, director of transportation, received 
confirmation that Ceres Solutions would honor the fixed pricing quoted in 
their fuel bid. (Codified File 2223-87) 

 

Fuel Bid for 2023 

Brad Sheppard, assistant superintendent of instruction, presented a 

proposed new course offering for the 2023-2024 school year: Advanced 
Placement Precalculus, for Board review.  (Codified File 2223-88) 
 

New Course 

Offering 

The Board received a financial report from Kevin Scott, chief financial 
officer, for the period January 1 – November 30, 2022.  The Board 

found the report to be in order.  
 
Mr. Scott reported the excess levy appeal for roughly $1.2 million 

dollars was approved by the DLGF.  This is a permanent adjustment 
(we will receive annually) to the property tax amount we raise, and 

will help us with the higher fuel costs, higher bus purchase costs, and 
increased driver wages.  The approval is certainly a positive outcome 
of the 2023 budget process. 

Financial 
Report 

  

The Board received an insurance update for the month of November 
2022.  Mr. Scott reported November claims were higher this month 
but still trending $564,000 less than last year. 

  

Insurance 
Update 

An audience member Kerry Mullet, Elkhart Teachers’ Association 

president, informed the Board they have a happy teaching staff.  She 
thanked the Board and the bargaining team for a great bargaining 
season.  Lots of good things are taking place this pay period including 

this year’s bargaining increases, insurance premium holiday, and the 
Teacher Appreciation Grant stipends. 

 
Ms. Mullet thanked all the staff in the administration building, 
especially the “unsung heroes” including Chris Romanetz, certified 

From the 

Audience 



4 
 

payroll; Maggie Logano, director of human resources; Loria Mayes, 
executive assistant; Cliff Ziebold, manager of enterprise application 

services; and the many others who worked tirelessly to ensure each 
staff member got their accurate income adjustment.  

 
In closing, Ms. Mullet wished everyone a Merry Christmas. 
 

Audience members Mayor Rod Roberson and Mrs. Regina Roberson 
thanked the administration and Board for their words of comfort and 

for allowing them to house the memorial services for the Mayor’s 
brother, Garvin Roberson, at North Side Gymnasium, a place Garvin 
was most connected.  In closing, they presented some donations to 

ECS, in Garvin Roberson’s memory, to the Board president and noted 
the family is requesting any further donations be made to EHS 

Athletics and or the Elkhart County Humane Society.   
 

 

Board members expressed their sympathy and thanked Mayor and 

Mrs. Roberson for sharing. 
 

 

Dr. Thalheimer asked the director of transportation to provide a status 
update on the bus driver shortage from last week.  Mr. Chevalier 

informed the Board the transportation department had a lot of illness 
last week with sixteen drivers absent due to illness; there were six 
drivers out sick today.  He affirmed ECS bus drivers are dedicated 

employees who care about our students.  Most were able to return to 
work this week, some wearing masks to protect themselves and 

students from potentially getting sick, in order to make sure our 
students get to school safely.  Mr. Chevalier said, “I couldn’t be more 
proud.” 

 
In response to Board inquiry, Mr. Chevalier explained last week was 

the “perfect storm” and it was simply not feasible to get students to 
school safely; there was just too much sickness.  He further explained 
when bus drivers are absent, all of the transportation employees who 

hold a CDL step up to cover routes including the routers, supervisors, 
dispatchers, trainers, and director of transportation.   Mr. Chevalier 

assured Board members they are doing everything they can to get kids 
to school, all while keeping them safe. 
 

All Board members thanked Mr. Chevalier and the transportation 
department employees for their efforts. 

 

From the 
Administration 

Dr. Thalheimer thanked Board members Rocky Enfield and Babette 
Boling for their service, always being child centered, and supporting 

ECS efforts as a district.  
 

From the 
Superintendent 

Dr. Thalheimer wished everyone a safe and happy holiday break. 
 

 



5 
 

Mrs. Babette Boling remarked on her time serving on the Board stating 
it was a pleasure and honor to work with Dr. Thalheimer and the rest 

of the Board members. 
 

From the Board 
 

Mr. Enfield remarked about his time serving on the Board stating it 
was a pleasure to serve with Dr. Thalheimer and the rest of the 
Board members. 

 

 

All Board members expressed their gratitude and thanked Mr. Enfield 

and Mrs. Boling for their service to ECS.  
 

 

Board member Kellie Mullins recognized Loria Mayes who is retiring 

with 42 years of service. 
 

 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:47 a.m. 
 

Adjournment 
 

  



6 
 

APPROVED: 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 

  Dacey S. Davis, President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Troy E. Scott, Vice President 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Babette S. Boling, Member 

 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Kellie L. Mullins, Member 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Anne M. VonDerVellen, Member 

 

 Signatures 

 

 



School Fundraising Activity Description/Purpose
Date(s) of 

Activity
Date 
Submitted Sponsor(s)

Elkhart High - 
Yearbook

Yearbook is hosting a "Sponsor a Day" 
calendar for the month of February. The 
amount of the donation is based on the 
calendar day. Ex: February 3rd costs $3 to 
sponsor. Previous ad sales from first 
semester were lower than expected and this 
will help offset the low sales. 

2/1/2023 - 
2/28/2023

12/20/2022 Amy Stine

Please note the following fundraisers are 
presented for confirmation only.







DATE: January 5, 2023

TO: Steve Thalheimer
Board of School Trustees

FROM: Pam Melcher

RE: Donation Approval

An Anonymous donation of $940.00 was given to pay negative food balances
throughout the Corporation.

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation.







 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Steven Thalheimer 

From:  Ms. Maggie Lozano 

Date:  January 10, 2023 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

 

a. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2022-23 school year: 

 

Victor Castillo    Freshman Division/World Language 

 

Samantha Pairan   Pinewood/Kindergarten 

 

Amber Teall    Bristol/Grade 3 

 

 

b. Administrative Appointment - The administration recommends confirmation of the following 

administrative appointment effective January 9, 2023: 

 

David Burden    Bristol/Assistant Principal 

 

 

c. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following employees: 

 

Laurie Ritchie  Daly/Grade   34 Years of Service 

 

Steve Starzyk  Elkhart High/Social Studies 33 Years of Service 

 

 

d. Leave – We recommend the approval of an unpaid medical leave for the following employee: 

 

Rebecca Milnes   Pierre Moran/Art 

Begin:  1/9/23    End:  3/31/23 

 

 

e. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 

Kellie Heuermann   North Side/Science 

Began: 8/29/22    Resign: 12/22/22 

 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Shawn Johnson   Pierre Moran/Assistant Principal 

Began:  8/30/21    Resign:  1/13/23 

 

Alexandra Sturgill   Roosevelt/Grade 5 

Began:  5/2/22    Resign:  1/13/23 

 

 

 
CLASSIFIED 

 

 

a. New Hires – We recommend regular employment of the following classified employees: 

 

Andrea Garcia    ESC/Secretary 

Began: 10/31/22   PE: 12/29/22 

 

Latell Washington   Osolo/Custodian 

Began: 11/1/22    PE:  1/4/23 

 

b. Retirement - We report the retirement of the following classified employee: 

 

Thomas Labuzienski   WVPE/Development Director 

Began:   4/1/13    Retire:  4/3/23 

       10 Years of Service 

            

 

c.  Leave – We recommend an unpaid leave for the following employees: 
 
Viola Flicker    Elkhart High/Food Service 

Begin:  1/18/23    End:  3/31/23 

Lisa Swartzell-Guerra   Riverview/Food Service 

Begin:  12/16/22   End:  2/14/23 

 

d. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following classified employees:  

 

Jennifer Geers    Elkhart High/Registered Nurse 

Began:  10/15/12   Resign: 1/20/23 

 

Katherine Gilpin   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began:  8/5/19    Resign: 12/21/22 

 

Elizabeth Gilvin   Elkhart High/Food Service 

Began:  4/26/17    Resign: 12/21/22 

 



 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

e. Termination – We recommend the termination of the following classified employee:  

 

Joanna Pizana    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began:  9/13/21    End: 1/10/23 

     Policy: 3139.01S 

 

 



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
 

 
The Board of School Trustees authorizes the Superintendent to issue written preliminary 

notice of the Board’s consideration of nonrenewal to those administrators in the school 

corporation whose contracts may not be renewed as recommended by the Superintendent. 

 

Passed and adopted by the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart Community Schools this 

10th day of January, 2023 

 

 

Signed this 10th day of January, 2023. 

 

AYE      NAY 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES, ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

 

 

Attest:  ______________________________, Secretary 

Board of School Trustees  

 



JULY 2023  JANUARY 2024 

S M T W T F S  S M T W T F S 

      1   1 2 3 4 5 6 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8   7 [8] 9 10 11 12 13 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15   14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22   21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29   28 29 30 31    

30 31               

         17 teacher days/17 student days 

AUGUST 2023   FEBRUARY 2024 

S M T W T F S   S M T W T F S 

  1 2 3 4 5       1 2 3 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12   4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19   11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26   18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

27 28 29 30 31     25 26 27 28 29   

14 teacher days/11 student days   19 teacher days/19 student days 

SEPTEMBER 2023   MARCH 2024 

S M T W T F S   S M T W T F S 

     1 2        1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9   3 4 5 6* 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16   10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23   17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30   
24 

31 25 26 27 28 29 30 
20 teacher days/20 student days   21 teacher days/21 student days 

 

OCTOBER 2023   APRIL 2024 

S M T W T F S   S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7    1 2 3 4 5 6 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14   7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21   14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28   21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

29 30 31       28 29 30     

20 teacher days/19 student days   17 teacher days/17 student days 

NOVEMBER 2023   MAY 2024 

S M T W T F S   S M T W T F S 

   1 2 3 4      1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11   5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18   12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25   19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30     26 27 28 29 30 31  
19 teacher days/19 student days 

  
22 teacher days/22 student days 

[96 teacher days/96 student days] 

DECEMBER 2023   JUNE 2024 

S M T W T F S   S M T W T F S 

     1 2        1 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9  2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16  9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23  16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30  23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

31        30       

15 teacher days/15 student days 
[88 teacher days/84 student days] 

DRAFT to Board of School Trustees:  12/15/22 

 

 

AUGUST 

8/14/23:  Full day pre-session 
for teachers – non student day 
8/15/23:  Full day pre-session 
for teachers – non student day 
8/16/23:  Full day pre-session 
for teachers – non student day 
 8/17/23 :  Students’ first day – 
full day for all students   

FEBRUARY  

 2/1/24 :  eLearning/Staff PD 
 2/16-2/19/24 :  Presidents’ 
Recess – ALL SCHOOLS 

CLOSED 

SEPTEMBER 

 9/4/23 :  Labor Day –  
ALL BUILDINGS CLOSED 
 9/26/23 :  eLearning/Staff PD 

MARCH  

 3/6/24 :  eLearning/Staff PD 
 *3/6/24:  SAT School Day 
participants are expected to 
come to school in-person for 
testing   
 3/15/24 :  End of 3rd Grading 

Period/Midterm (47 days) 

OCTOBER 

 10/13/23 :  End of 1st Grading 
Period/Midterm (41 days) 

 10/23-10/24/23 :  Elementary 

and Secondary P/T 
Conferences (evening hours) 

 10/25/23 :  Elementary and 

Secondary P/T Conferences 
(morning hours) and eLearning 
for all students 
 10/26-10/30/23 :  Fall Recess –  
ALL SCHOOLS CLOSED 

APRIL  

 4/1-4/5/24 :  Spring Break –  
ALL SCHOOLS CLOSED 
 4/11/24 :  Kindergarten Kick-off 
(Kindergarten Registration runs  
April 8-May 5) 
 4/16/24 :  eLearning/Staff PD 

NOVEMBER  

 11/22-11/24/23 :  Thanksgiving 
Recess – ALL SCHOOLS 

CLOSED 

MAY  

 5/27/24 :  Memorial Day – ALL 
BUILDINGS CLOSED 
 5/31/24 :  Last day for students 
and teachers (49 days) 
 

DECEMBER 

 12/7/23 :  eLearning/Staff PD 
 12/21/23 :  End of 2nd Grading 
Period/1st Semester (43 days) 
 12/22 – 12/29/23 :  Winter 
Recess – ALL SCHOOLS 

CLOSED 

JUNE 

 6/3/24 :  In the event an 
eLearning day cannot be utilized 
for a closure during the school 
year, school would be in session 
in person on this day 
 

JULY 

SCHOOL CALENDAR:  July 2023 – June 2024 

184 teacher days/180 student days 

JANUARY  

 1/1-1/5/24 :  Winter Recess – 
ALL SCHOOLS CLOSED 
[1/8/24]:  School resumes after 
Winter Break 
 1/15/24 :  Martin Luther King, Jr 

Day – ALL SCHOOLS CLOSED 


	2023-01-10 Notice of Work Session Cancellation
	2023-01-10 Notice Organizational Meeting
	2023-01-10 Notice Annual Board of Finance
	2023-01-10 Notice of Board Meeting Time Change
	Agenda - January 10, 2023 Organizational Meeting
	Conflict of Interest Forms
	Board of Finance 2023
	Board of Finance Agenda 2023 Binder
	board of finance signature
	Agenda - January 10, 2023 Board of Finance

	Agenda - January 10, 2023
	Minutes - Regular Meeting  - December 19 2022
	Fundraisers 1_10_2023
	Gift - food svc anon
	Gift - food svc Mary Church
	Gift - food svc anon 2
	Conference Leaves - ESC
	Personnel Report 1-10 agenda revision
	2022-01-10 Resolution of the BST Consideration of Nonrenewal Notice

